
Village of Liverpool Planning Board 
Monday March 28, 2016 

7:00 PM 
 

Present: Joseph Ostuni, Chairman   Michael LaMontagne 
John Eallonardo    Peter Osborne, absent  
Robin Daloia - Alternate   Tom Tartaglia, absent 
Jim Taft     William Reagan – Codes Officer 
John Langey, Attorney   Ric Maar, Engineer – Dunn & Sgromo 
Sandra Callahan, Secretary 

 
Call to Order 
Chairman Ostuni called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and led all present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
John Eallonardo moved and Mike LaMontagne seconded the motion to adopt the minutes from the 
January 25, 2016 meeting. 
 
New Business 
Special Permit Application 109 Alder Street – On the application of Robert Perrine to demolish a one 
car garage and construct a new 24’ x 24’ two car garage for a property located at 109 Alder St. 
designated as tax map 002.-09-05.0 
 
Bill Reagan said that all drawings submitted comply with Village code and this doesn’t need to be 
referred to County Planning. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked for questions from the board. 
 
John Eallonardo asked why he needs a special permit. Bill Reagan said it was so the Planning Board can 
oversee the use of accessory structures to exclude commercial use, apartments, etc. 
 
Mike LaMontagne asked if the new garage would match the house color, siding, etc. The applicant said it 
would. 
 
Jim Taft asked if an area variance would be required. Bill Reagan said no, that two accessory structures 
are allowed such as a garage and shed. 
 
John Langey reviewed Part 2 of the SEQR form and after answering all questions, it was determined that 
this application is a negative declaration and will have no negative environmental impact. 
 
Mike LaMontagne moved and John Eallonardo seconded the motion naming the Planning Board as lead 
agency. Motion passed. 
 
Jim Taft moved and Robin Daloia seconded the motion to open the public hearing. Motion passed. 
 
There were no comments from any neighbors or the public. Mike LaMontagne moved and Jim Taft 
seconded the motion to close the public hearing. Motion passed. 
 
John Eallonardo moved and Robin Daloia seconded the motion to approve the application and drawings 
as submitted. Motion passed. 
 



Site Plan Review - Lemrog Gull – 116 S. Willow St. – On the application for the Barking Gull for the 
addition of a 400 sq. ft. deck on the south side of the building and a new outside bar on top of the new 
deck for a property located at 116 S. Willow St. designated as tax map #004.-06-19.1 
 
Adam Gormel the applicant explained they will be closing the upstairs bar completely and adding a 400 
sq. ft. addition to the deck and bar. 
 
Bill Reagan said the plans and drawings submitted looked good. There is no request for additional 
seating or signage. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked for questions from the board. 
 
Mike LaMontagne asked if there would be any access to the upstairs bar. Adam Gormel said it would be 
closed completely with no access. 
 
John Eallonardo asked if the new deck will be right at the property line. Mr. Gormel said it would be as 
close as possible. 
 
Chairman Ostuni said they need to complete a short EAF. The SEQR will be submitted to the County with 
Part 1 completed and the board will review the environmental impact at the April meeting. 
 
Motion was made by Jim Taft and seconded by Mike LaMontagne to refer the application to the 
Onondaga County Planning Board. Motion approved. 
 
Old Business 
512 Oswego – On the site plan application of Sohyla Ziaie for an LED sign at the property located at 512 
Oswego Street. The referral from OCPB was received and it was noted that their recommendation stated 
the Village should consider the design handbook and discourage electronic messaging signs due to 
vehicular safety. 
 
The applicant stated that any sign could be a distraction. The sign would not be animated it would just 
display the business information. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked if she would be willing to have a non-LED sign. The applicant said she wants the 
LED sign so she can get rid of the A-Frame sign she currently uses, that gets blown over repeatedly from 
the wind. 
 
The tenant/business owner from 514 Oswego St. said the sign would promote the business and not be a 
distraction. 
 
Bill Reagan said all village businesses are starting to want these types of signs and this will be an ongoing 
discussion.  The gas stations want them in order to change their prices internally rather than having to 
go out and change the signs manually. The Village sign code is old, and that it is an added expense to the 
business owner printing banners, a-frame and other temporary signs. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked for comments from the board. 
 
Jim Taft said that if we allow LED signs they should not be flashing or scrolling. 
 



Mike LaMontagne said we need to set guidelines for LED signs; they should not be lit at night after the 
business is closed as an example. 
 
Bill Reagan said the LED signs should only be lit when the business is open and that it is almost like a 
temporary sign because the message can be changed. 
 
Attorney Langey said if item #3 in the County referral “The Board further discourages the proliferation of 
electronic messaging signs in village environments, and advises the Village to consider whether approval 
of the proposed sign will set a precedent for additional businesses to propose similar signage which 
cumulatively may have a negative impact on vehicular safety, the pedestrian-friendly environment, and 
village character” is right for the Village cumulatively going ahead as other businesses will come before 
the Planning Board. 
 
Bill Reagan said the size of the sign is also important. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked for a roll call vote to allow for an LED sign at 512 Oswego St. 
 
Robin Daloia – No   John Eallonardo – No 
Mike LaMontagne – No   Jim Taft – No 
 
The sign request is denied. 
 
514 Oswego St.  – On the site plan review application for 514 Oswego Street for a ground sign. 
 
Bill Reagan said the sign request as submitted is the same size as the current sign. 
 
There were no comments from the board. 
 
A motion was made by Jim Taft and seconded by Robin Daloia to approve the sign request. Motion 
carried. 
 
105-113 Second St. – Site Plan and sub-division review for property at 105-113 Second St. for a 
proposed project to build a Dunkin’ Donuts restaurant 
 
Bob Abbott, architect for the proposed project handed out new drawings to the board. The site plan 
hasn’t changed, the design look has. 
 
The new drawing shows a lower pitched hip roof with stone around the drive-thru and brown brick on 
the building with cream colored trim. 
 
He stated there is room to have 11 cars stacked around the restaurant before going off the property. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked about the proposed outside café seating. Mr. Abbott said it will be fixed, under 
an overhang. The store would use the same fence design as in Washington Park. 
 
Mr. Abbott said there would be dropped curbs for handicap access and a green zone. 
 
Attorney Langey said they should bring samples of the brick, paint color, etc. for the next meeting. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked about signage and lighting. 



Mr. Abbott said there would be 2 wall signs, 1 over the entrance and 1 over the left elevation and 1 cup 
sign over the drive thru and that they are internally lit. The canopy lighting is down lit to light the 
walkway. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked for questions from the board. 
 
Chairman Ostuni asked about parking lot lighting – Mr. Abbot said he will present it at a future meeting 
 
He also asked about the stacking of cars at the drive-thru and are they doing a traffic study? Mr. Abbott 
said they haven’t yet and asked if it was required by NYS DOT.  
 
Ric Maar, Engineer said that we definitely want to see one. The State DOT will issue a directive due to 
the proximity of the traffic light. 
 
Mr. Abbott said that they will have traffic info at the April meeting. 
 
Attorney Langey will review the SEQR and original application to make sure everything is still accurate. 
 
Robin Daloia and John Eallonardo both said they like the building design.  
 
Mike LaMontagne likes the design, he thinks the sign should be ribbon lit not back lit. He also thinks the 
stacking of the cars may be an issue; no one can pull out or turn around to exit. He also commented that 
there is a lot of asphalt especially with the Retreat parking lot next door and asked if they could add 
green space. 
 
Jim Taft asked what is the distance from the driveway entrance to the traffic light? Mr. Abbott said 
approx. 140’. They will do a gap analysis which is the study of the main road and the number of gaps in 
traffic to allow people to exit. 
 
Attorney Langey said in order to submit to County Planning, we need a special use permit application for 
the drive thru, and updated SEQR. 
 
Mr. Abbott said the hours of operation would be 5 a.m. to midnight. 
 
Ric Maar said that in December 2015 a letter was sent from the Engineer’s office with several items that 
needed to be addressed. This will be discussed at the next meeting. 
 
Attorney Langey said he will do the County referral. On the SEQR the Village Planning Board will be 
named lead agency and that we need to list all involved agencies including NYSDOT, County Plumbing-
WEP and any others that we discover. This project is on less than 1 acre and there are no variances 
required. 
 
A motion was made by Jim Taft and seconded by John Eallonardo to name the Village Planning Board as 
lead agency. Motion approved. 
 
Ric Maar said that we should get NYSDOT involved as soon as possible. 
 
Mr. Abbott said there was an LED reader sign listed on the original application. Chairman Ostuni said to 
list the signage separately until the planning board has some LED sign design guidelines in place. 
 



Mr. Abbott also said that Dunkin Donuts allows community notices to be places on the LED sign. 
 
Attorney Langey will send everything to county planning and suggested getting the traffic study as soon 
as possible. 
 
This application will be placed on the April agenda. 
 
Other Business 
Mike LaMontagne asked how we move forward with LED sign regulations. 
 
Chairman Ostuni said we need to review the sign code. Bill Reagan will send an email to the Board with 
the village code as well as other municipalities’ LED guidelines. 
 
Alison Bentley – Third St. asked who is responsible if traffic gets backed up onto the street? 
Chairman Ostuni said the traffic study will help us with this. 
 
Mayor Gary White said the potential for backed up traffic exists but most traffic comes from Rt. 370 and 
is only 1 lane until Vine Street.  
 
Mayor White would like the Planning Board to put together a recommendation regarding LED signs for 
the Village Board to be addressed at the next Village Board meeting April 14th. 
 
There being no further business, Chairman Ostuni asked for a motion to adjourn. Motion made by Mike 
LaMontagne and seconded by Robin Daloia, motion approved. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sandra J. Callahan 
Planning Board Secretary 
 
  
 
 


